
 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
Council Chambers, 800 1st Terrace, Lansing, KS 66043 

Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 7:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Minutes 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

PRESENTATIONS 

NEW BUSINESS 

2. Fence Request - 124 Meadow Lane 

3. Executive Session - Economic Development 

REPORTS - City Attorney, City Administrator, Department Heads, Councilmembers 

PROCLAMATIONS 

OTHER ITEMS OF INTEREST 

4. Monthly Department Vehicle and Equipment Mileage Reports 

5. Community & Economic Development Permits/Licenses & Code Enforcement Report 

ADJOURNMENT 

Regular meetings are held on the first and third Thursday of each month. For information on how to view prior 
meetings, please visit our website at https://www.lansingks.org. Any person wishing to address the City Council, 
simply proceed to the microphone in front of the dais after the agenda item has been introduced and wait to be 
recognized by the Mayor. When called upon, please begin by stating your name and address. A time designated 
“Audience Participation” is listed on the agenda for any matter that does not appear on this agenda. The Mayor will 
call for audience participation. Please be aware that the City Council and staff may not have had advance notice of 
your topic and that the City Council may not be able to provide a decision at the meeting. If you require any special 
assistance, please notify the City Clerk prior to the meeting. 

1



AGENDA ITEM 
TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator 

THRU: Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk 

FROM: Shantel Scrogin, Assistant City Clerk 

DATE: June 14, 2021 

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes 

       AGENDA ITEM # 

The Regular Meeting Minutes of June 3, 2021 are enclosed for your review. 

Action:  Staff recommends a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of June 3, 2021, 
as presented. 

2

Agenda Item 1.



CITY OF LANSING 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 3, 2021 

Call To Order: 
The regular meeting of the Lansing City Council 
was called to order by Mayor McNeill at 7:00 
p.m.  

Roll Call: 
Mayor McNeill called the roll and indicated which 
Councilmembers were in attendance. 

Councilmembers Present: 
Ward 1:  Gene Kirby and Dave Trinkle 
Ward 2:  Marcus Majure  
Ward 3:  Jesse Garvey and Kerry Brungardt 
Ward 4:  Ron Dixon and Gregg Buehler 
 
Councilmembers Absent: Don Studnicka 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  
Approval of Minutes:  Councilmember Garvey moved to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of May 
20, 2021, as presented. Councilmember Dixon seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously 
approved. 
 
Audience Participation:  Mayor McNeill called for audience participation on an item not on the agenda 
and there was none. 
Presentations 
COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA ITEMS:   
Temporary Special Event Permit – Lansing Independence Days Event: Councilmember Kirby 
moved to approve the Temporary Special Event Permit and authorize Embrace the Grape of Kansas LLC to 
sell beer, wine, and alcoholic beverages at the Lansing Independence Days Event. Councilmember Buehler 
seconded the motion.  

• Councilmember Buehler stated I just have a question. I know they initially said Leavenworth County 
didn’t have anybody and you were going to go see if one of the local bars could do it. Did they 
come back and say no. 

o City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner responded they did not, but they have to have a caterer’s 
license. There is some time and cost into that so with this timing it didn’t quite fall into 
place. So, I have had that discussion and that may be something we can do in the future. 

 Councilmember Buehler replied ok I was just curious because we talked about it 
last time. 

• City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner responded absolutely. 
o Councilmember Buehler stated thank you. 

• Councilmember Dixon asked question, has alcohol been sold in the past at the 4th of July. 
o Mayor McNeill replied yes. Go ahead Tim. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall responded I believe it has been sold at Lansing 
Days before. I’m not positive about 4th of July. I know we kind of merged Lansing 
Days with the fireworks so that is why were thinking about doing this. Is that your 
understanding as well Sarah.  

• City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner replied correct. 
• Councilmember Majure stated I got a question. It says to be sold out of a truck. Are they going to 

have more than one or two people doing it. Are we going to have a line that’s a hundred to two 
hundred people back trying to get a red Solo cup here. What are they selling. Cups, cans, or 
bottles. 

o City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner replied so they have a list of things they provided to Matt 
and I, just a mockup of what they were thinking. Obviously, it hasn’t been finalized but this 
is what their company does on a regular basis. They cater weddings, they do large events 
so this is not something that they are underprepared for. We gave them an idea of what we 
were thinking attendance could be so they will have the appropriate staff on hand to handle 
the need. 

• Councilmember Trinkle asked our PD will still be somewhat involved in this too. 

3

Agenda Item 1.



June 3, 2021 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) ....................................................................................................................... Page 2 
 

o City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner replied correct. 
 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yes. 

• Councilmember Trinkle asked like they always have been. 
o City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yes. 

 
The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
Approval of Bid – K-7 & Eisenhower Traffic Signal Poles: Councilmember Buehler moved to 
approve and award the bid for Traffic Signal Poles and Equipment to Gades Sales Company, Inc., in an 
amount not to exceed $81,406.00. Councilmember Kirby seconded the motion. 

• Councilmember Trinkle asked is that just our half of the total. 
o Public Work Director Mike Spickelmier responded the cost of the poles is by the formula 

that has been signed by the Kansas Department of Transportation and the MOU between 
Leavenworth and Lansing. The cost for Lansing is approximately $10,854.68 for this 
particular part. 

 Councilmember Trinkle asked I mean we’re not going to argue over who is putting 
the pole on who’s property or anything. 

• Public Work Director Mike Spickelmier replied no. 
o Councilmember Trinkle stated we don’t know where everything is 

going to go. 
 Public Work Director Mike Spickelmier responded yes. 

• Councilmember Trinkle stated it’s all a 
gentleman’s agreement. 

o Public Work Director Mike Spickelmier 
responded well it’s more so than that. It’s 
a formal agreement between the cities and 
the State. 

 
The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
Fence Request – 412 Caraway Place: Councilmember Brungardt moved to approve the fence request 
for 412 Caraway Place. Councilmember Garvey seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously 
approved. 
 
Ordinance No. 1062 – UDO Text Amendment - Apiaries: Councilmember Buehler moved to 
approve and adopt Ordinance No. 1062. Councilmember Kirby seconded the motion.  

• Councilmember Majure stated I have a question.  
o Mayor McNeill stated go ahead Marcus. 

 Councilmember Majure asked we’re talking about acreage of five acres or more, 
we would not need to come in requesting permission. The question though is, is 
there anything out there that prohibits me from having five acres, but I put my bees 
right up next to his fence line or his property line where maybe his house or his 
dwellings are. Is there anything like that. Is there any discussion about that or we 
just say, you got five acres or more you can put bees where you want them. That’s 
the one thing I’d be concerned about. We’ve never done it before. I’m just asking. 

• Councilmember Garvey asked you’re talking about having a buffer in 
between the property line and the bees. 

o Councilmember Majure responded yeah, because that is the one 
thing, anything greater than five acres, I can put it. Now I’ve got 
Marcus against Jesse with my bees all over his property line. He’s 
got dogs, horses, you know what I’m saying. That would not be 
good. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied I’m not sure if that 
came up during the Planning Commission discussion. 

4

Agenda Item 1.



June 3, 2021 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) ....................................................................................................................... Page 3 
 

• Councilmember Majure responded I didn’t read it 
in the discussion. 

o Councilmember Garvey responded I didn’t 
see anything about that. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall 
stated I know where it came up 
how this started. It was a property 
that was in city limits, but it was 
twenty acres. I know that 
gentleman reached out to us. We 
were trying to think of some 
number where, obviously it would 
make sense for someone with 
twenty acres to be able to put 
bees on their property especially if 
they are on the fringe of the city. 
But I’m not sure if they discussed 
if there is some type of buffer. I 
don’t know if, I guess they are not 
permanent so it wouldn’t be a 
setback. The way it would a shed 
or something like that. 

o Mayor McNeill stated we’d have to look at 
where in the city do we have adjoining 
acreages that it would apply to.  

• Councilmember Garvey asked how many acres 
was the property off of west Mary. Remember the 
guy who wanted the apiary. Was it three? 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied no, that one was 
quite a bit. I would bet that is over five. 

o Councilmember Garvey asked you think. 
• City Attorney Greg Robinson stated I think it has something to do with the 

property being in the flood plain. 
 Councilmember Garvey responded yeah it did. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall stated I think this one was on 147th. 
o Councilmember Majure responded yeah, this one is on 147th. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall stated I don’t have the answer to your question if 
there is some type of buffer they discussed or anything like that.  

• Councilmember Brungardt stated that was good question and I’ll give an 
example. My brother and sister-in-law were wanting to build a house and 
they are running, its out in the County, and they are running into an issue 
like this. They’re having to redo their thinking of where they want their 
house because of something like this. 

o Mayor McNeill asked do we want to table it and ask the question. 
 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yeah, I think we can 

table it. 
• Mayor McNeill stated have Matt relook at it. 

o Councilmember Garvey asked who 
seconded that. 

 City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner 
replied Gene did. 

o Councilmember Kirby stated I withdraw. 
• Councilmember Buehler stated I withdraw my 

motion. 
 

5

Agenda Item 1.



June 3, 2021 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) ....................................................................................................................... Page 4 
 

Councilmember Buehler moved to table Ordinance No. 1062 and go back to the Planning Commission to 
ask if a buffer distance between properties is needed or suggest there be one. The motion was 
unanimously approved. 
 
REPORTS: 
Department Heads: Department Heads had nothing to report. 
City Attorney: City Attorney Greg Robinson had nothing to report. 
City Administrator: City Administrator had nothing to report. 
Governing Body: Councilmember Garvey went to Club Car Wash and will be buying a membership 
there. They do a great job there. Harbor Freight is moving along so progress on that.  
Councilmember Buehler provided a fun fact, on this day, Ed White crew member of Gemini 4, performed 
the first American space walk in 1965. 
Councilmember Trinkle asked about the congestion of cars at 7th St and Eisenhower. There has been a 
couple of wrecks due to the parking on the corner. The neighbors are restless again with the situation.  

• Mayor McNeil asked if we could do the same as we did on Holiday. Can a firetruck get through it. 
o Councilmember Trinkle replied a fire truck would not have gotten through last night. 

 Mayor McNeill stated we’ll look into it. 
Councilmember Kirby stated he has been to Club Car Wash and now has two memberships there. They do 
a really good job. 
Councilmember Majure thanked Tim and staff for working hard on bringing in the new businesses. It’s 
exciting in Lansing! 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
Councilmember Majure moved to adjourn. Councilmember Brungardt seconded the motion.  The motion 
was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m.  
 
 
 

 
_______     

ATTEST:      Mayor, Anthony R. McNeill 
 
     
City Clerk, Sarah Bodensteiner, CMC 

6

Agenda Item 1.



 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator 

THRU: Matthew R. Schmitz, Director, Community and Economic Development 

DATE: June 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: Fence Request – 124 Meadow Lane  

 
 

 

                            AGENDA ITEM # 
 
 

Fredrick and Jennifer Behnke, property owners at 124 Meadow Lane, wish to replace a four-foot 
wooden picket fence which exists today in the platted side setback of 25 feet on the north side 
of their property, and extends into the right-of-way, with a six-foot privacy fence.  The location of 
the fence is inside of the right of way line, which is 16 feet from the back of the curb. The fence 
to be replaced is approximately 5 feet from the curb, parallel with the street, on the north side of 
the property. The fence has existed in this orientation since at least July of 2008 (oldest image 
on Google Street View). The property owner is asking for additional area to be enclosed by the 
fence, shown by the red line on the attached map from the county GIS system. The yellow line 
shown on the GIS map is the existing fence. An image from Google Street View is also included 
for reference (from 2019). 
 
Visuals are attached for reference. 
 
The City Code allows residents to bring before the City Council consideration of variances on 
fence requests. In reviewing the application to replace the fence with a reduced setback as 
shown in the attached drawing, staff finds no apparent conflicts with adjoining site triangles, or 
easements, but it would extend into the road right of way, as it does today.  Attached is the plat 
for Country Club Addition.   
 
Staff will include or deny this area in the building permit based on the City Council’s subsequent 
decision. 
 
Action:  Staff recommends the Council approve the fence request from Fredrick and Jennifer 
Behnke, 124 Meadow Lane. 
 
 

7

Agenda Item 2.



Leavenworth County, KS

66.6

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet66.60

Notes

Legend

33.31

1 in. = 33ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Address Point

Parcel Number

Lot Line

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary

8

Agenda Item 2.



 

9

Agenda Item 2.



 

10

Agenda Item 2.



11

Agenda Item 2.



 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator 

FROM: Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk 

DATE: June 14, 2021 

SUBJECT: Executive Session – Economic Development 

 
 

 

                            AGENDA ITEM # 
 
 

 
Executive Session will be called to review Economic Development activities pursuant to the 
discussion of confidential data relating to the financial affairs or trade secrets of corporations, 
partnerships, trusts, and individual proprietorship, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(4). 
 

 
12

Agenda Item 3.



13

Agenda Item 4.



14

Agenda Item 4.



15

Agenda Item 4.



16

Agenda Item 4.



17

Agenda Item 4.



18

Agenda Item 4.



19

Agenda Item 5.


	Top
	Agenda Item 1.	Approval of Minutes
	Meeting Minutes Agenda Item

	Agenda Item 2.	Fence Request - 124 Meadow Lane
	FenceRequest124MeadowLaneComplete

	Agenda Item 3.	Executive Session - Economic Development
	Executive Session - Eco Devo

	Agenda Item 4.	Monthly Department Vehicle and Equipment Mileage Reports
	Monthly Department Report

	Agenda Item 5.	Community & Economic Development Permits/Licenses & Code Enforcement Report
	CED Report

	Bottom

